



MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY 1 SEPTEMBER 2009

GARRY HUNT Chief Executive Officer

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ITEM NO	TITLE	PAGE NO
	DECLARATION OF OPENING AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF VISITORS	1
	PUBLIC QUESTION TIME	2
	PUBLIC STATEMENT TIME	4
C75-09/09	APOLOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE REQUESTS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE – CR TOM McLEAN, CR RUSS FISHWICK AND CR MICHELE ROSANO	4 5
	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST	5
	IDENTIFICATION OF MATTERS FOR WHICH THE MEETING MAY SIT BEHIND CLOSED DOORS	6
	ITEM OF BUSINESS	
JSC12-09/09	PROPOSED COMMUNITY SPORTING FACILITY, SEACREST PARK – AND THE RESULTS OF THE COMMUNITY CONSULTATION FOR THE PROJECT	6
	CLOSURE	29

CITY OF JOONDALUP

MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, JOONDALUP CIVIC CENTRE, BOAS AVENUE, JOONDALUP, ON TUESDAY, 1 SEPTEMBER 2009

DECLARATION OF OPENING

The Mayor declared the meeting open at 1833 hrs.

ANNOUNCEMENT OF VISITORS

Nil.

ATTENDANCES

Mayor:

TROY PICKARD

Councillors

Cr TRONA YOUNG
Cr MARIE MACDONALD
Cr GEOFF AMPHLETT
Cr MICHELE ROSANO
Cr MIKE NORMAN
Cr SUE HART
Cr BRIAN CORR
Cr RUSS FISHWICK
Cr RUSS FISHWICK

North-Central Ward Central Ward Central Ward South-West Ward South-East Ward South-East Ward South-East Ward South Ward

Officers:

MR GARRY HUNT MR JAMIE PARRY MR MIKE TIDY MR MARTYN GLOVER MR CLAYTON HIGHAM MR MIKE SMITH MR GAVIN TAYLOR MR MARK McCRORY MRS JANET FOSTER MRS LESLEY TAYLOR Chief Executive Officer Director, Governance and Strategy Director, Corporate Services Director, Infrastructure Services Acting Director, Planning and Development Manager, Governance and Marketing Manager, Leisure and Cultural Services Media Advisor Administrative Services Co-ordinator Administrative Secretary

There were 109 members of the Public and 1 member of the Press in attendance.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

The following questions were submitted prior to the Special Meeting of Council:

Mr S Kobelke, Sorrento:

Re: Proposed Sporting Facility, Seacrest Park and the results of the Community Consultation for the project.

- Q1 Referring to Item CJ287-12/08 Federal Infrastructure Grants Proposed Projects from 16th December 2008. There was an extensive list of major projects listed including the Craigie Swimming Pool and the Yellagonga Environment Centre Project. The Seacrest Park Sporting Facility did not rate a mention - why?
- A1 The amount offered as part of that round of Federal Funding totalled \$833,000 and was required to be spent by 30 September 2009. The size and complexity of the proposed Seacrest Facility was greater than the funds being offered and would not have been able to be expended within the required timeframe.
- Q2 Referring to CJ049-03/09 Seacrest Community Sporting Facility Project from 17 March 2009. Only 91 days after the decision to make the West Coast Drive Enhancement Project the City's preferred Infrastructure project, and including the two month Christmas break by Council, at the 17 March 2009 the unheard Seacrest \$5.2 million Infrastructure project appears from nowhere. How was it possible for the City to investigate this option in 91 days including the Christmas break?
- A2 The Federal Government Regional and Local Community Infrastructure Projects identified the projects which would receive priority funding, included those projects which could demonstrate significant community benefit and would be jointly funded between multiple organisations. The West Coast Drive Enhancement project did not meet all the criteria and therefore an alternative project was submitted.
- Q3 Referring to CJ049-03/09 Seacrest Community Sporting Facility Project from 17 March 2009. The City refers in this report to some very informal discussions in 2008 with the Whitfords Football Club. Isn't it a fact that these discussions were between the Mayor and the Football Club and that the City of Joondalup did not undertake any investigation until late January 2009?
- A3 A response was provided to Mr Kobelke at the meeting held on 16 June 2009 advising that the City had held discussions with the Sorrento Duncraig Cricket Club and the Whitford Amateur Football Club.
- Q4 The City of Joondalup has the second largest staff of any local government authority in Western Australia with an Executive payroll stretching into the millions of dollars. Why isn't it possible for the City to provide a specific single recommendation to the Council as is their job?
- A4 The Council made a decision at its March 2009 meeting in regards to the Seacrest Community Sporting Facility Project. The project then became subject to a Special Meeting of Electors, which carried a number of resolutions. It is now the role of the Council to determine its position relating to the future of the project based on:
 - the decision made at the 17 March 2009 meeting;
 - the resolutions carried at the Special Meeting of Electors; and
 - the options presented to it by the CEO.

- Q5 Between the 16 December 2008 decision to make the West Coast Drive Enhancement Project the major infrastructure project and the 17 March 2009 decision to rescind that decision and install the unheard of Seacrest Park option, were the Elected Members of the South West Ward consulted in any way?
- A5 That is a question to be asked of the South West Ward members.

Mr W Platt, Sorrento:

- Re: Seacrest Park
- Q1 MacDonald Park in Padbury, the home ground for the Whitfords Football Club currently prohibits dogs on the park. We ask the City of Joondalup can they guarantee that dogs will still be allowed on Seacrest Park, and that this situation will not change in the future?
- A1 This question was asked by Mr Platt at the meeting of the Council held on 16 June 2009 and the response provided at that time was that *"The City has no plans to prohibit dogs at Seacrest Park as part of the proposed development".*
- Q2 We ask the City of Joondalup, when will the final plans for the proposed Sporting facility for Seacrest Park, be available for local residents to view and comment on?
- A2 The Council at the special meeting to be held on 1 September will decide if a facility will be constructed on the site.
- Q3 Recently, at the Belmont Tennis Club, teenagers threw bottles at police, did burnouts in cars and jumped on vehicles, as a crowd of 300 people spilled out onto the nearby streets, terrifying local residents. Can the City of Joondalup guarantee the local residents around Seacrest Park, that similar antisocial behaviour, drunkenness and violence, will not occur as a result of this proposed Bar and Function facility?
- A3 This question was asked by Mr Platt at the meeting of the Council held on 16 June 2009 and the response provided at that time was that *"The City is unable to make comment on the incidents that occurred at Belmont Tennis Club".*

The following questions were submitted verbally at the Special Meeting of Council held on 1 September 2009:

Mr M Sideris, Mullaloo:

- Re: Proposed Community Facility at Seacrest Park
- Q1 When will the City provide ratepayers with a copy of the Business Plan for this project which will outline the financial virtues to ratepayers?
- A1 There is no requirement for a Business Plan to be prepared for a project of this significance. The provisions of the Local Government Act 1995 specify the types of projects that require Business Plans to be undertaken.

Mr P Matsoni, Sorrento:

- Re: Proposed Community Facility at Seacrest Park
- Q1 A number of questionnaires were distributed to ratepayers seeking comments on certain aspects of this proposal. To whom were the questionnaires sent and how have the results been compiled?
- A1 Within the report the City has endeavoured to outline information that was taken from the various questions. Each question was analysed in terms of Sorrento residents, other City of Joondalup residents and residents outside the City of Joondalup and then an overall total. In relation to the questions, each had a scale of strongly agree, agree, neutral, disagree or strongly disagree. The analysis endeavoured to highlight the results arising from both the questions and the particular sectors of the community or external to the community who responded to the questions.
- Q2 I am interested in the demographics to whom the questionnaire was sent; the balance between local residents and those external to the local community.
- A2 The City does not send questionnaires based on demographics, but rather the geographics of residents within a proximity of 500 metres to Seacrest Park, plus stakeholders and other relevant groups within the community, which amounted to 1091 residents.

PUBLIC STATEMENT TIME

Mr M Ranford, Greenwood:

Mr Ranford spoke in relation to the proposed Community Sporting Facility at Seacrest Park.

Mr D Hanslip, Sorrento:

Mr Hanslip spoke in relation to the proposed Community Sporting Facility at Seacrest Park.

Mr K Trew, Sorrento:

Mr Trew spoke in relation to the proposed Community Sporting Facility at Seacrest Park.

Mayor Pickard advised an opportunity was afforded to the Save Seacrest Park Committee as well as a representative of each of the sporting groups involved to make a presentation to this evening's Council meeting in view of the fact that this matter would not be submitted to a Briefing Session. Both the Save Seacrest Park Committee and the sporting groups concerned chose not to take up the opportunity.

APOLOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Apologies: Cr Kerry Hollywood Cr Fiona Diaz

C75-09/09 REQUESTS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE – CR TOM McLEAN, CR RUSS FISHWICK AND CR MICHELE ROSANO – [78624]

Cr Tom McLean has requested Leave of Absence from Council duties covering the period 1 to 23 September 2009 inclusive.

Cr Russ Fishwick has requested Leave of Absence from Council duties covering the period 3 to 13 September 2009.

Cr Michele Rosano has requested Leave of Absence from Council duties covering the period 3 to 14 September 2009.

MOVED Cr Young, SECONDED Cr Amphlett that Council APPROVES the Requests for Leave of Absence from Council duties covering the following dates:

Cr Tom McLean	1 to 23 September 2009 inclusive.
Cr Russ Fishwick	3 to 13 September 2009 inclusive.
Cr Michele Rosano	3 to 14 September 2009 inclusive.

The Motion was Put and

CARRIED (9/0)

In favour of the Motion: Mayor Pickard, Crs Amphlett, Corr, Fishwick, Hart, Macdonald, Norman, Rosano and Young

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Disclosure of Financial Interests

Nil.

Disclosure of interest affecting impartiality

Elected Members (in accordance with Regulation 11 of the Local Government [Rules of Conduct] Regulations 2007) and employees (in accordance with the Code of Conduct) are required to declare any interest that may affect their impartiality in considering a matter. This declaration does not restrict any right to participate in or be present during the decision-making process. The Elected Member/employee is also encouraged to disclose the nature of the interest.

Name/Position	Mayor Troy Pickard		
Item No/Subject	JSC12-09/09 – Proposed Community Sporting Facility, Seacrest		
	Park – and the results of the Community Consultation for the		
	Project		
Nature of interest	Interest that may affect impartiality		
Extent of Interest	Mayor Pickard is a patron of the Northern Warriors Veterans Football Club		

Name/Position	Cr Trona Young	
Item No/Subject	JSC12-09/09 – Proposed Community Sporting Facility, Seacrest	
	Park – and the results of the Community Consultation for the	
	Project	
Nature of interest	Interest that may affect impartiality	
Extent of Interest	f Interest Cr Young's husband is a member of the Northern Warriors Football	
	Club	

Name/Position	Mr Garry Hunt, Chief Executive Officer
Item No/Subject	JSC12-09/09 – Proposed Community Sporting Facility, Seacrest Park – and the results of the Community Consultation for the Project
Nature of interest	Interest that may affect impartiality
Extent of Interest	A nephew of Mr Hunt plays for the Whitfords Football Club

IDENTIFICATION OF MATTERS FOR WHICH THE MEETING MAY SIT BEHIND CLOSED DOORS

Nil.

JSC12-09/09 PROPOSED COMMUNITY SPORTING FACILITY, SEACREST PARK – AND THE RESULTS OF THE COMMUNITY CONSULTATION FOR THE PROJECT.

WARD:

RESPONSIBLEGarry Hunt**DIRECTOR:**Office of the CEO

All

- FILE NUMBER: 02146
- ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1 Site map without proposed facility Attachment 2 – CJ049-03/09 Council resolution Attachment 3 - Traffic count survey Attachment 4 – Winter season proposed usage schedule Attachment 5 – Site map with proposed facility Attachment 6 – Project option timelines

PURPOSE

To report to Council on:

- 1 The results of the community consultation undertaken for the proposed Community Sporting Facility at Seacrest Park, Sorrento.
- 2 The options available for consideration as a result of the community consultation process.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report considers the development of facilities at Seacrest Park that would cater for a range of junior and senior team sports. The City received support for this project through a Federal Government stimulus funding program and as part of the planning for the project undertook community consultation on the proposal.

The community consultation process highlighted that those living closest to the site strongly opposed the development of facilities, to the size and scale proposed. Respondents who were a member of a sporting team or lived outside of Sorrento indicated support for the proposed facilities.

The key issues highlighted in the consultation process related to the licensed function room, proximity of the facility to residents, increase in local traffic, lack of parking provision and potential increase in anti-social behaviour.

In addition to the consultation process, the City also received two petitions strongly opposing the proposed facilities, a Community Impact Assessment and over 200 letters and emails which were considered when developing the options for Council consideration.

A Special Electors Meeting was held regarding the proposal to develop facilities at Seacrest Park, where three motions (one in favour and two opposing the development) were debated, which are summarised in this report.

Three facility development options have been identified for Seacrest Park which considers the options of continuing with the project as proposed, not proceeding with the project or developing a new proposal with alternative facility development options.

It is recommended that Council:

- 1 NOTES the findings of the community consultation process undertaken for the proposed Seacrest Park Community Sporting Facility project;
- 2 NOTES the motions carried at the Special Meeting of Electors on 20 July 2009;
- 3 CONSIDERS which of the three options outlined in this report should be adopted.

BACKGROUND

Seacrest Park is a 9.1 hectare site located on the corner of Seacrest and St Helier Drives, Sorrento. Seacrest Park is Crown land with the City of Joondalup having a Management Order over the park for the purpose of Parks and Recreation (Refer Attachment 1).

Current Usage

Currently Seacrest Park consists of two sporting grounds, three floodlight towers, cricket wicket, cricket nets, 111 bay car park, playground equipment and toilet facilities. The park is currently utilised for training and game requirements of the following sporting clubs:

- Sorrento Duncraig Junior Football Club
- Wanneroo Joondalup Tee-Ball Club
- Sorrento Duncraig Junior Cricket Club
- Sorrento Duncraig Senior Cricket Club

The oval is currently utilised 22% of available booking time during winter and 25% during summer. The average utilisation for the park throughout the year is 23.5% which is 1.5% lower than the average utilisation across all City active parks.

Seacrest Park is an active sporting reserve that was developed to a size capable of hosting two Australian Football League (AFL) ovals. Whilst a large provision of car parking exists at the park, the development of clubroom/change room facilities was never undertaken.

Sporting Facility Requirements

In 2007, the City undertook discussions with the sporting clubs currently utilising Seacrest Park and identified the need for change room and clubroom facilities. The City also held discussions with the Whitford Amateur Football Club located at MacDonald Reserve, Padbury regarding their continued growth. The Whitford Amateur Football Club identified their need for a location that could accommodate two (2) AFL ovals and provide increased clubrooms and change room facilities.

MacDonald Reserve currently comprises one AFL ground and hockey fields, which are used as cricket ovals during summer. MacDonald Reserve is currently utilised by the following sporting clubs:

- Whitford Cricket Club
- Whitford Hockey Club
- Whitford Amateur Football Club.

Two AFL ovals could not be accommodated at MacDonald Reserve as the additional oval currently used by hockey in winter, is designed so that damage to the turf cricket wicket pitch does not occur. Establishing the hockey oval into an AFL oval would damage the turf cricket wicket and affect summer users of the oval.

In 2008, Seacrest Park, amongst other active sporting reserves, was identified as a potential site for consideration. The Whitford Amateur Football Club and the Sorrento Duncraig Cricket Club worked together to scope a facility design at Seacrest Park. The cost estimates for the facility at Seacrest Park was considered prohibitive by the Clubs and as the City had no funds planned for a facility at Seacrest Park no further investigations occurred.

The size and scope of the Clubs proposed facilities at Seacrest Park was not considered a master planning project as no funds had been allocated to the project, and the project was based on developing a facility rather than redesigning the entire park.

Grant Funding and Council Approval

In November 2008, the Federal Government released \$300 million through its Regional and Local Community Infrastructure Program. In December 2008, Council endorsed the submission of a grant application for the West Coast Drive Coastal Pathway Enhancement Project.

In February 2009, the Federal Government released an additional \$550 million to the Regional and Local Community Infrastructure Program. Applications including concept design and preliminary cost estimates were required to be lodged by March 2009. The Seacrest Community Sporting Facility was identified as a potential project that could meet the funding guidelines.

In March 2009, the City made an application to the Federal Government's Regional and Local Community Infrastructure (RLCIP) Strategic Projects scheme for the Seacrest Community Sporting Facility which was endorsed by Council at its meeting on 17 March 2009 (CJ049-03/09 refers). At this time, Council formally revoked its decision from December 2008 and withdrew its application for the West Coast Drive Coastal Pathway Enhancement Project in favour of the Seacrest Community Sporting facility (see Attachment 2).

Council noted at that time that the City would undertake community consultation with local Sorrento residents and sporting clubs on the proposed project, once it had received feedback on the success of the application.

In May 2009, the City was informed of the successful grant application for the proposed Community Sporting Facility at Seacrest Park. The financial contributions for the project included \$2.6 million from the Federal Government, \$2.2 million from the City and \$400,000 from Whitford Amateur Football Club.

Community Consultation

In accordance with Council's decision of March 2009, the City undertook community consultation for the proposed Community Sporting Facility in June 2009. Public comment on the proposed development could be made during the consultation period between 9 June and 6 July 2009. Residents living within 500 metres of the site and sporting clubs/groups received a frequently asked questions and answers sheet, proposed concept plan and a survey. In addition, other members of the public could complete the online survey located on the City's website during the consultation period.

At its June 2009 meeting, Council received a 1,100 signature petition and a separate 118 signature petition strongly opposing the proposed facility at Seacrest Park.

A 195 signature petition (of which 186 signatures were verified as being Electors) was received on the 17 June requesting a Special Meeting of Electors to discuss the proposed Seacrest Park Development.

Special Meeting of Electors

At the Special Meeting of Electors held on 20 July 2009 there were 464 persons in attendance, 442 of whom were electors registered to vote during the meeting. There were two (2) motions that were put and carried:

- This meeting of Electors urged the City of Joondalup to recognise Seacrest Park as a local park for the use of residents and local sporting clubs and visiting teams.
- In relation to the proposed development at Seacrest Park, this meeting of Electors urges the City of Joondalup to address the issues concerning Sorrento ratepayers with regard to planning, alcohol-related antisocial behaviour, noise, traffic and parking by developing an alternative proposal that addresses the quality of life concerns of the residents and meets the needs of local sporting groups. The alternative we propose is to provide a single storey change room facility incorporating kitchen, storage and meeting rooms at the park.

One (1) motion was put and lost:

• That the City of Joondalup continues with the development of the proposed Community Sporting Facility at Seacrest Park, Sorrento giving due diligence to City Policy 7-3 Community Facilities-Built; The City undertakes traffic management, parking and lighting studies as part of the development; The City and users of the facility enter into a Management Agreement for the Facility.

This report summarises the findings from the community consultation process and considers options for the development of facilities at Seacrest Park.

DETAILS

Community consultation results

The City received 1,463 submissions during the public comment period for the proposed Community Sporting Facility at Seacrest Park. In addition, 322 surveys were received after the closing of the public comment period. Results of the feedback received after the public comment period are summarised later in the report.

From the feedback received during the public comment period, 999 or 68.3% of respondents identified that they were from the suburb of Sorrento, 328 or 22.4% were residents that resided in other City of Joondalup suburbs and 118 or 8.1% were from outside the City. 18 or 1.2% of respondents did not state their place of residence.

1,198 people or 81.9% of submissions were from people identifying themselves as representing their own household. There were 316 or 21.6% of people identifying themselves as representatives or members of recreation or sporting groups.

Of the 1,198 responses from people representing their own household, 789 or 65.9% reject, or strongly reject the concept plan. Of the 316 responses received from people identifying themselves as members of recreation or sporting groups 95.6% supported, or strongly supported the concept plan for the proposed facility.

7% of people identifying themselves as Sorrento residents indicated that they currently use Seacrest Park for passive activities such as walking, fitness, family and play. 58.5% of residents from other City of Joondalup suburbs indicated that they currently use the park for passive recreation activities, whilst 62% of people living outside the City of Joondalup use the park for organised sports games and/or training.

A summary of the responses to the survey questions has been provided which details the feedback from the different respondents of the survey.

ADEQUACY OF EXISTING SPORTING FACILITIES OF SEACREST PARK

Question one (1) of the survey asked respondents to answer the following question: "Do you believe the existing sporting facilities (toilet block, AFL ovals, cricket wicket and nets) adequately meet the needs of the sporting clubs?"



- 44.5% of all respondents indicated that the existing sporting facilities adequately meet the needs of the sporting clubs
- 42.5% of all respondents indicated that the existing sporting facilities do not meet the needs of the sporting clubs.
- 13% of all respondents were undecided.
- 56.5% of Sorrento residents indicated that the existing sporting facilities are adequate to meet the needs of the sporting clubs.
- 78% of respondents from other City of Joondalup suburbs indicated that the existing facilities do not meet the sporting clubs needs. 26.5% of these respondents indicated that they represented a sporting/recreation group
- 73% of people living outside the City also indicated that the existing facilities do not meet the sporting clubs needs. 54% of these residents indicated that they represented a sporting/recreation group.

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT FEATURES

Question two (2) of the survey asked "*Please indicate your level of support for the features of the proposed facilities.*" The table below shows the overall responses received for this question.



- 65.7% of respondents either disagree or strongly disagree with the function room as a facility option.
- 52.1% of respondents either disagree or strongly disagree with the location of the facility on the park and additional car parking.
- 51.3% of respondents strongly agreed that management controls should be implemented for any developed facility at the park.
- 52% of respondents either agreed or strongly agreed that the toilets and change room require upgrading.
- 48% respondents either agreed or strongly agreed that the upgrade and relocation of the playground is required.

The feedback on the facility features varied dependent on geographic proximity to the site. The following summarises the responses of Sorrento residents and other City of Joondalup residents.

Sorrento residents

The trend in feedback received from Sorrento residents replicated the overall responses. The function room (84.7%), additional car park (67.2%) and location of the facility on the park (66.4%) received the most opposition from Sorrento residents. The provision of toilet/change room facilities received a reasonable level of support (40.3%) as did the upgrade and relocation of the playground (37.5%). Sorrento residents strongly supported controlling the opening hours (75.2%), type of activities (75.4%) and car park access (76.6%).

Other City of Joondalup residents

People who live in the City of Joondalup but outside of Sorrento supported the proposed facility features. The most supported elements of the concept plan included the toilet / change rooms (81.4%), additional car parking (79.6%), sports floodlighting (78.6%), cricket match wicket (78.3%), function room (76.9%) and the upgrade/relocation of the playground (76.5%). Support for controls on opening hours, types of activities and car park access was also supported (51%).

OVERALL VIEW OF THE PROPOSED CONCEPT PLAN

Question three (3) of the survey asked respondents to answer the following question: "Having reviewed the proposed concept plan in more detail, please let us know what you think about it overall"



A total of 61% of respondents rejected or strongly rejected the proposed concept plan with 37% supporting or strongly supporting the plan.

- 78.5% of Sorrento residents either rejected or strongly rejected the concept plan.
- 77% of other City of Joondalup residents supported or strongly supported the concept plan.

Below is a demographic breakdown on the respondents who either strongly supported or strongly rejected the plan.

Of the 780 people who strongly rejected the concept plan:

- 86.9% lived in Sorrento
- 62.3% were aged between 42 and 65
- 90.6% were representing their own households
- 83.6% presently use Seacrest Park for walking, fitness, family activities and play
- 2.6% use the Park for organised sports games and/or training

Of the 397 people who strongly supported the concept plan:

- 29.5% lived in Sorrento
- 52.1% lived in other City of Joondalup suburbs
- 57.7% were aged between 18 and 41
- 65% were representing their own households
- 33% presently use Seacrest Park for walking, fitness, family activities and play
- 21.7% use the Park for organised sports games and/or training

FURTHER COMMENTS ON THE PROPOSED CONCEPT PLAN

Question four of the survey asked respondents to answer the following question:

"Are there other comments you would like to make regarding the design or management of the proposed community sporting facility?"

199 comments were received against the proposed development out of the total 1,463 responses. The comments have been categorised under four main headings including Traffic, Parking, Noise and Alcohol.

Respondents identified that the new facility would increase road traffic in the area. The feedback centred on Seacrest Drive and St Helier Drive being local roads with the development expected to increase the amount of traffic in the area beyond the capacity of these roads, which would impact on the safety of the local roads.

Parking [Varking]

Respondents identified parking provisions at Seacrest Park as an issue. The feedback stated that there would be a lack of car parking space to meet the needs of the Whitford Amateur Football Club, with the result being an increase in street and verge parking around the park.

<u>Noise</u>

Respondents identified noise as a concern whether it occurred as a result of having a function room at the Park or as a result of the increase in traffic to and from the venue. The noise issue was also linked to a belief that there would be an increase in anti-social behaviour arising from the consumption of alcohol at the facility. It is believed that these incidents would increase with the introduction of licensed premises in a residential area, thereby changing the suburbs amenity and value for local people.

<u>Alcohol / Liquor License</u>

Respondents identified that a licensed premise as part of the function room was not supported at Seacrest Park. The comments highlighted that residents believe that a licensed function facility will directly increase the amount of public drinking, expose children to alcohol and increase anti-social behaviour, particularly when the facility's bar closes.

Facility Support

The City received 34 written comments supporting the development out of the total 1,463 responses. In summary, the comments indicated that existing facilities were inadequate to meet the needs of sporting clubs and groups, the proposed development would be of benefit to the whole community and is likely to increase participation in sporting activities played at the park.

Other feedback received

In addition to the feedback received via completed surveys as part of the community consultation process, the City also received the following correspondence:

- 203 letters and emails. The majority of these opposing the proposed facilities.
- 1 x 1,100 signature petition strongly opposing the proposed facilities.
- 1 x 19 signature petition strongly opposing the proposed facilities.
- 1 x Community Impact Assessment submitted by the Save Seacrest Park Committee.

The Community Impact Assessment provided to the City outlined a range of considerations for the proposed development. The City has reviewed the information provided in the Community Impact Assessment and has considered the views expressed regarding traffic volumes, location of the facility, antisocial behaviour, noise levels and car parking in its options for Council consideration.

Consultation results – received after close of public comment period

The City received 322 submissions after the public comment period closed. A summary of the results is as follows:

- 251 or 78% of the respondents were from Sorrento, 13% or 43 from other City of Joondalup residents and 6.5% or 21 from outside the City.
- 254 or 79% of submissions were from people representing their household.
- 143 or 57% of Sorrento residents and 25 or 58% of other City of Joondalup residents believe that the existing sporting facilities adequately meet the needs of the sporting clubs.
- From the listed facility features, Sorrento residents did not support any with the function room (232 or 92.4%), location of the facility (205 or 81.7%) and additional car park (190 or 75.7%) receiving least level of support. Feedback received from residents living in other City of Joondalup suburbs, replicated the feelings of Sorrento residents.
- 210 or 88% of Sorrento residents and 41 or 95% of other City of Joondalup residents did not support the proposed concept plan.

Traffic and Parking

The City has undertaken a review of Seacrest Park to assess if the existing road network and the proposed car parking provisions are capable of meeting the increase use of the Park.

The review included undertaking (see Attachment 3):

- Two separate traffic surveys from July 4, 2009 for seven days and from 29 July, 2009 for seven days on Seacrest Drive adjacent to Seacrest Park.
- A traffic survey on St Helier Drive from July 4, 2009 for seven days.
- A car park entrance survey at Seacrest Park and MacDonald Reserve from July 4, 2009 and from 29 July, 2009 for a period of seven days.

Road classification and capacity

The roads adjacent to Seacrest Park, including Seacrest Drive and St Helier Drive are classified as Local Distributor Roads designed to carry 6,000 vehicles per day. During the traffic survey, St Helier Drive, west of Seacrest Drive averaged 3,593 vehicles per day (60% capacity) and Seacrest Drive north of Helier Drive averaged 3,750 vehicles per day (62% capacity).

The research indicates that traffic volumes and crash numbers for Seacrest Drive are consistent with other Local Distributor Roads within the City.

The City had received feedback through the consultation process that the design of Seacrest Drive and St Helier Drive was a local access road designed to carry 3,000 vehicles per day. The City has confirmed with Main Roads that Seacrest and St Helier Drive are Local Distributor Roads.

If the proposed facilities were developed and Whitford Amateur Football Club relocated to Seacrest Park the increase in car movements is estimated at approximately 160 vehicles per day. When Whitford Amateur Football Club play their home games every second Saturday at Seacrest Park, it will result in approximately 584 additional vehicle movements. This increase would not exceed Seacrest Drive or St Helier Drive's design capacity.

Parking

The existing car park at Seacrest Park consists of 111 vehicle bays. The proposed development at the park would see an additional 30 bays provided. Results from the traffic survey (see Attachment 3) indicated that Seacrest park car park averages 120 inbound vehicle movements per day.

The City undertook an internal review of the car parking requirements at Seacrest Park if the new facility was developed by considering:

- the number of games and training sessions expected each week.
- times where two training sessions or games would coincide.
 the number of players, coaches and spectators and associated cars that would attend each session.
- The current car parking usage at MacDonald Reserve.

It is anticipated that the relocation of the Whitford Amateur Football Club to the new facility would result in, on average, 217 weekly inbound vehicle movements per day. Inbound traffic movements at Seacrest Park every second Saturday is estimated at 452. As a comparison 469 inbound traffic movements on the 9 August was the highest recording at MacDonald Reserve.

The proposed parking meets the requirements of the City's District Planning Scheme. The review of the car parking requirements for Seacrest Park, on the basis of usage, highlighted that the proposed 142 car parking bays would be adequate to meet the requirements of the function room yet would be inadequate to meet the requirements of the sporting clubs on two timeslots throughout the week during winter (Refer Attachment 4). The estimated times where car parking shortfalls would occur include:

- The transition between junior and senior training on Tuesday evenings from 6.30pm 7pm. During this period it is expected that a shortfall of 19 bays would occur.
- When two games are played consecutively on Saturday afternoons from 2pm 5pm, it is estimated that a car parking shortfall of 55 bays would occur.

Issues and options considered:

Three options have been identified regarding the proposed Community Sporting Facility at Seacrest Park, Sorrento. The three options include:

- 1. Proceed with the proposed development.
- 2. Withdraw the project.
- 3. Develop a new proposal and re-apply for Federal Government funds.

Option One: Proceed with the proposed development.

In this option, the City would proceed with the development of the Community Sporting Facility, as currently proposed at Seacrest Park and would implement management strategies to control the types of activities that occur within the facility. In this option the facility would be developed to a similar size and at the same location as highlighted in the plan distributed as part of the community consultation process (Refer Attachment 5).

Whilst 61% of respondents rejected or strongly rejected the proposed concept plan, 42.5% of respondents believed the existing sporting facilities are inadequate.

The majority of concerns regarding the proposed development from residents have related to potential parking/traffic issues and the possible increase in noise/antisocial behaviour associated with the function/bar facilities.

The key advantages and disadvantages of proceeding with the proposed development include:

Pros	Cons
 The proposed facility provides features valuable to sporting clubs and groups such as change rooms, storage, clubrooms floodlights and upgrade to cricket facilities. Community consultation results showed 37% of respondents support the proposed facility. The proposed facility would meet the existing sporting teams needs. Maximises the use of an active sport reserve. The relocation of cricket practice nets and playground would alleviate the residents' current concern over their location. The function and meeting areas would provide sporting groups and community groups with space to hold meetings, socialise and run programs. The bar facilities controlled through a restricted liquor license would financially assist the Sporting clubs operations. The City has received significant funding for the proposed facility. 	 Community consultation results showed 61% of respondents did not support the proposed facility. The local community would strongly resist the development. Further delays with the project could affect the City's ability to meet funding guidelines. The City cannot guarantee that there will not be any noise or antisocial behaviour problems associated with the proposed facility. Based on expected usage, a car parking shortfall of 55 bays would be expected at some of the AFL games.

The proposed facility would be controlled by management strategies that are agreed by the City and the user groups.

Option Two: Withdraw the project

In this option the City would withdraw the application to the Regional and Local Community Infrastructure Program for the Seacrest Park development and return \$1,304,550 in funds received.

Pros	Cons
 Existing usage levels at the park would remain. No additional car parking facilities required. Sorrento residents concern over parking, traffic, anti-social behaviour issues would be resolved. The landscape of the park would remain unchanged. 	 The current facilities at the park would remain inadequate for existing sporting clubs/groups. The current location of the cricket practice nets and playground would remain a concern for residents. The full potential of Seacrest Park as an active sporting reserve not realised. The Western Australian Football Commission would have limited ability to grow in their current location. The current facilities at Seacrest Park do not provide the sporting groups and community groups with space to hold meetings and run programs. The City would lose the significant funding received from the Federal Government for the project (\$2.6Million). The City could compromise its ability to obtain future Federal Government Funding. Sporting groups and the community could seek specific facilities to meet their needs of which the City may have to fully fund.

The key advantages and disadvantages of not proceeding with the development include:

The withdrawal of the project would require the City to return all funds received by the Federal Government.

This option does not provide the City with the ability to consider alternative designs options that could satisfactorily meet the needs of local residents and local sporting clubs at Seacrest Park, Sorrento.

Option Three: Develop a new proposal and re-apply for Federal Government funds.

In this option, the City would not proceed with the Community Sporting Facility at Seacrest Park as proposed. The City would seek to make a new submission for the development of alternative facilities. This option would require the City to notify the Federal Government that the proposed sporting facility at Seacrest Park will not proceed in its current format but an alternative proposal will be lodged for consideration.

In this option the City would consider a revised facility design at Seacrest Park, which has regard to both local sporting club and community needs and concerns. The City could also consider developments at MacDonald Reserve to improve the existing clubroom, storage and change room facilities.

The key risk with this option is that any new proposal may not be accepted by the Federal Government.

The key advantages and disadvantages of developing a new proposal and re-applying for Federal Government funding includes:

Pros	Cons
 The community consultation results and the supported motions from the Special Meeting of Electors could be used to scope suitable development options. The Federal Government has indicated that it will consider an alternative proposal by the City, although it will be treated as a new proposal and will require approval from the Minister. If a new proposal is accepted, the City could retain \$2.6million in Federal Government funds for alternative facility developments. An alternative development could include change rooms, storage, floodlights, meeting room, kitchen/kiosk and upgrade to cricket facilities. An alternative development could include the relocation of cricket practice nets and playground to alleviate the Sorrento residents concerns. The City could consider other projects as part of a new application such as upgrades at MacDonald Reserve for the Whitford Amateur Football Club. The City may have more time (depending on Federal Government funding guidelines) to consult with key stakeholders on alternative development options. 	 The needs of local sporting clubs and the Whitford Amateur Football Club would not be met in the short term. Some Sorrento residents strongly oppose any facility developments at Seacrest Park, and therefore would not support a new proposal. The City is not guaranteed that the Federal Government will commit to any alternative proposals; therefore the City may lose \$2.6 million in funding. The full potential of Seacrest Park as an active reserve would not be met. The development of new proposals for consideration by the Federal Government would require significant City resources. If approved, the City would need to assess its ability to deliver the capital project already specified in the 2009/2010 budget. The current funding is conditional upon the City commencing works on the site by 22 December 2009.

Legislation/Strategic Plan/Policy Implications

Legislation Not Applicable.

Strategic Plan

The consultation process has been conducted in alignment with the Key Focus Area of Leadership and Governance and the following objectives and outcomes.

1.2 Objective:To engage proactively with the community.Outcome:The City acts with a clear understanding of the wishes of the
community.

Policy Not Applicable.

Risk Management considerations:

If the proposed facilities are developed in their current format there is a risk that the City will not have the resources to manage the community engagement of such a decision. It would be expected that those members of the community who did not support the project would engage with the City to seek alternative ways to stop the facility from being developed. This engagement with the City would require significant resources to manage and may impact on the delivery of City projects or services. If the City does not proceed with any submission to the Federal Government, there is a real loss in revenue for the City, in establishing recreation assets. As a need for improved facilities has been identified it is likely that in the future the City would be required to meet this need by funding the development of facilities. Without Federal Government funding the cost of any future projects will be significantly higher.

Financial/Budget Implications:

The funding for the project is proposed as follows:

•	Federal Government RLCIP Grant:	\$2,609,100
٠	Whitford Amateur Football Club:	\$400,000
٠	City of Joondalup:	\$2,214,100
•	Total Project Expenditure:	\$5,223,200

Regional Significance:

Seacrest Park is an active sporting reserve with two AFL ovals. The size and facilities at Seacrest Park cater for both local residents and more broadly sporting teams that live both within and beyond the City of Joondalup. Seacrest Park is considered a regionally significant park.

Sustainability Implications:

Any developments at Seacrest Park will consider sustainable design features to ensure the construction process and ongoing operations of the facilities minimise environmental impact.

COMMENT

Community Consultation

The overall results of the community consultation indicate that 61% of respondents do not support the proposed facility, particularly those residing in Sorrento where 78.5% of respondents do not support the proposed facility. The City has also received significant correspondence and petitions from people opposing the proposed development.

There was a clear difference in opinion about the existing sport facilities at Seacrest Park. Whilst Sorrento residents believe the existing sporting facilities are adequate they also represent a very small portion of people who participate in sport activities at the Park. Those respondents who participate in organised sport at Seacrest Park and typically live outside of Sorrento indicated that the existing facilities did not meet sporting club needs.

The results highlighted that those living closest to Seacrest Park do not support some of the key design elements of the proposed facility including its location, the function room and the additional car parking.

The concept of providing a bar and function facilities in a community sporting complex is considered standard across many sporting facilities within the City. Through effective liquor control practice, booking and lease condition management, the City has had no major incident from any of these facilities over the last three years.

The concern that this facility would operate as a 'pub' is inaccurate. The operation of the bar facility would be controlled by a Club Restricted Liquor License which only permits members or invites guests to purchase drinks and consume alcohol on site. The conditions of the Restricted Liquor License would be controlled by the Department of Racing, Gaming and Liquor who would also act on any complaints received from the public regarding the operations of the licensed facilities.

From the respondents not living in Sorrento, the facilities receiving the most support included the toilet and change rooms, additional car parking and lighting. Importantly the results showed that 40.3% of Sorrento residents supported the development of toilet and change rooms.

The key results of the consultation process indicate that the effective management of any facility development is essential and whilst the function room received the least support, the development of toilets and change rooms received the highest level of support from all respondents.

Traffic and Parking

The review has highlighted that the road networks to and from Seacrest Park were designed for and have the capacity to meet the increased traffic volumes expected from the increased usage at the Park. The City has confirmed that the Seacrest and St Helier Drives are Local Distributor Roads designed to accommodate 6,000 cars per day.

The car parking provision proposed for the new facility, which increases bays from 111 to 141 would not be able to accommodate for the change over between training sessions on a Tuesday evening when two games of AFL occur simultaneously on a Saturday. The transition of training between juniors and seniors would require 160 car parking bays for a period of approximately 30 minutes. Two games of AFL under current fixtures occurs once per fortnight and at these times would require 169 car parking bays.

There are two options available to meet the parking demand for the proposed facilities within the Seacrest Park site. The first is the development of 55 additional car parking bays. An increase in car parking bays would require 1,650 square metres on the site and would be an estimated additional cost of \$330,000 to the project. This represents a significant investment to cater for parking shortfalls occurrences that are only expected during the winter sports season.

It should be noted that 67.2% of Sorrento residents opposed the 30 additional car parking bays and therefore would strongly oppose increasing car parking further.

The preferred option to developing additional car parking bays would be the option of cars parking on the surrounds of the oval. Cars parking on dedicated areas on the surrounds of the oval could be considered for over flow car parking to alleviate the car parking bays shortfalls. This option in conjunction with signage that restricts car parking on verges offers an alternative to developing an additional 55 car parking bays.

Facility Development Options

Whilst Option One, being the development of the proposed facility at Seacrest Park provides significant benefit to sporting clubs, the consultation process has clearly indicated that local residents do not support the proposal. The proximity of the facility to nearby residents, the increased traffic on roads and the potential for car parking over flow to occur on neighbouring residents' verges are considered real impacts of the project. If option one was endorsed the timeframes for implementing the project has been summarised on Attachment 6.

The Special Meeting of Electors in July 2009, supported the results of the consultation process with the motion to proceed with the proposed facility, being lost. The motion that was put and carried at this meeting was the development of a single storey facility that did not include a function facility, to meet the needs of local sporting clubs.

Option Two, the withdrawal of the project, would address the Sorrento residents concerns over the potential impact of the proposed facilities; however the needs of the sporting clubs would not be addressed. The needs of both the local sporting clubs and the Whitford Amateur Football Club are considered realistic. The City will need to consider meeting these sporting club needs, yet may not have the guarantee of Federal Government Funding. If option two was endorsed the City would need to notify the Federal Government and return the \$1,304,550 already allocated to the City, as summarised in Attachment 6.

Option Three would require the City to develop a new proposal for Federal Government funding to address the needs of existing sporting teams at Seacrest Park and the needs of the Whitford Amateur Football Club and potentially other clubs at MacDonald Reserve.

Whilst 61% of respondents did not support the project, the Special Electors Meeting and the results of the community consultation process indicate that facility improvements to meet the needs of existing sporting clubs at Seacrest Park are required, yet not to the size and scale proposed.

On the 22 July 2009, the City received a letter from the Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development and Local Government indicating that the Federal Government would consider an alternative proposal from the City. Whilst a new proposal would be considered it is likely City would still need to meet the criteria of spending approved funds by December 2010. It is unlikely new proposals could be delivered within these timeframes. As a minimum an extension to the completion of new projects from December 2010 to April 2011 would be requested. If this was not approved by the Federal Government the City would need to seek advice on any future Federal Government stimulus grants that may be offered suitable to the new proposals.

The design of alternative facilities for Seacrest Park would require further community consultation to determine the scope of the project. From the feedback received an alternative facility may include the following features:

- Single storey
- Increased distance from nearby residents
- Toilets
- Change rooms
- Kitchen / kiosk
- Sporting club storage
- Small meeting room
- Sports Floodlighting
- Upgrade to the cricket wicket and practice nets
- Playground refurbishment

The need for a new WAFC home ground facility complete with two (2) AFL size ovals and function room and bar facilities would not be addressed by only developing facilities for local sporting teams at Seacrest Park. The City would need to consider how some of the WAFC needs could be met through improved facilities at MacDonald Reserve. If any development were to occur at MacDonald Reserve the needs of the Whitford Hockey Club and Whitford Cricket Club would also need to be considered. If option three was endorsed the City would need to develop new project proposals, develop designs, undertake consultation and reapply to the Federal Government as summarised in Attachment 6.

SUMMARY

The opportunity to develop sporting facilities through a joint funding agreement with the Federal Government, at a park that currently offers inadequate facilities and is an active sporting reserve where facilities were one day likely to be built, was seen as a opportunity that could provide many benefits. The City's commitment to the project centred on undertaking community consultation to ascertain the views of both local residents and sporting clubs that associated with Seacrest Park.

With only 37% of respondents supporting the proposal, the consultation process has not demonstrated enough support for the project to proceed in its current format and therefore option one is not a favourable option.

Option Two provides a short term solution that addresses some of the feedback from residents who do not want to see any developments occur at Seacrest Park, yet fails to provide any long term benefit to the Clubs who currently use the inadequate facilities at Seacrest Park.

An approach by the City to address the needs of local sporting teams at Seacrest Park and MacDonald Reserve through a new development proposal would provide the City with a new project, which could meet the criteria of the Federal Government's Regional and Local Community Infrastructure funding program. Whilst the proposal to develop alternative facilities would be considered in a new application, it is anticipated that the application would be able to demonstrate significant community benefit for the Federal Governments consideration.

A key risk to any new proposal will be the Federal Governments timeframes associated with the spending of funds. The City would need to seek an extension to the existing funding agreement conditions which states the project completion date as 31 December 2010.

If the option to develop a new proposal and re-apply for Federal Government funds is recommended, significant resources would be required of the City, which may include re-evaluating the proposed capital projects currently planned for 2009/2010.

The development of a new proposal for sporting facilities at Seacrest Park and MacDonald Reserve provides the City with an opportunity to acknowledge the outcomes of the community consultation process whilst still addressing the facility needs of sporting clubs. Whilst significant City resources would be required to plan and deliver any new proposals, the potential community benefit of a revised project at Seacrest Park and MacDonald Reserve would be long term, catering for a broad cross section of City of Joondalup residents.

VOTING REQUIREMENTS

Simple Majority

OFFICER'S RECOMMENDATION: That Council:

- 1 NOTES the findings of the community consultation process undertaken for the proposed Seacrest Park Community Sporting Facility project;
- 2 NOTES the motions carried at the Special Meeting of Electors on 20 July 2009;
- 3 CONSIDERS which of the three options outlined in this report should be adopted.

MOVED Mayor Pickard, SECONDED Cr Rosano that Council:

- 1 NOTES the findings of the community consultation process undertaken for the proposed Seacrest Park Community Sporting Facility project;
- 2 NOTES the motions carried at the Special Meeting of Electors on 20 July 2009;
- 3 DOES NOT proceed with the original proposal for a Community Sporting Facility at Seacrest Park;
- 4 In consideration of the findings of the community consultation process and in addressing the needs of the affected sporting clubs in the locality, ADOPTS Option 3, being a revised and integrated solution comprising:
 - (a) The construction of a revised Seacrest Park Community Facility at Seacrest Park that provides a facility similar to Penistone Clubrooms located at Penistone Reserve, namely a single storey clubroom facility comprising change rooms, toilets, kitchen, storage, meeting room and function room. The revised Seacrest Park Community Facility is to be used by Sorrento Duncraig Senior Cricket Club, Sorrento Duncraig Junior Cricket Club, Sorrento Duncraig Junior Football Club and Wanneroo Joondalup Tee-Ball Club and is to be designed in keeping with its close proximity to the residential area and incorporate a Management Plan including, but not limited to, the prohibition of night time facility hire to casual users;
 - (b) Upgrade and extension to the Fleur Freame Pavilion at Macdonald Reserve including but not limited to an upgrade of existing facilities and an extension to the clubroom to cater for the Whitford Amateur Football Club, Whitford Junior Football Club and Whitford and Districts Senior Cricket Club and the construction of a new clubroom to the south west of the existing clubroom to cater for the Whitford Hockey Club;
 - (c) Upgrade an extension to the change room and toilet block facility at Forrest Reserve including but not limited to an upgrade of the existing change room and toilet facility and the construction of a new clubroom including storage, kitchen and function room to cater for the Whitford Amateur Football Club, Whitford Junior Football Club and the Northern Warriors Veteran Football Club;

- 5 ESTABLISHES a Working Group to contribute to the design and development of the revised proposal for the Seacrest Park Community Facility comprising:
 - (a) Four representatives of the Save Seacrest Park Committee;
 - (b) One representative each from the Sorrento Duncraig Senior Cricket Club, Sorrento Duncraig Junior Cricket Club, Sorrento Duncraig Junior Football Club and Wanneroo Joondalup Tee-Ball Club;
 - (c) Mayor Troy Pickard, Councillor Michele Rosano and Councillor Mike Norman;
- 6 RESOLVES that the total expenditure for the integrated solution is not to exceed the total project expenditure previously allocated of \$5,223,200 including City of Joondalup '2009/'10 budgeted funds of \$2,214,000;
- 7 NOTES that the existing sporting club users at Macdonald Reserve and Forrest Reserve will be engaged during the development of the revised integrated solution to seek their contribution to the proposed upgrade and extensions at Macdonald Reserve and Forrest Reserve;
- 8 NOTES that the City will seek public comment on proposal 4 (b) and 4 (c) listed in Point 4 above for a 21 day period, to be advertised by way of:
 - (a) Signage on site;
 - (b) Advertisement in community newspaper;
 - (c) Letter to residents immediately adjoining the reserve;
 - (d) The City's website;

advising of the nature of the proposed development, where the plans can be viewed and how comment can be made to the City;

- 9 ADVISES the Minister for Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development and Local Government of Council's decision not to proceed with the original proposal for a Seacrest Park Community Sporting Facility project and requests a variation to the approved Regional and Local Community Infrastructure Program project to enable the revised integrated solution to be implemented;
- 10 RESOLVES that should the Minister for Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development and Local Government not agree to Council's request to vary the approved Regional and Local Community Infrastructure Program project, the City submit a new application incorporating the integrated solution to the Regional and Local Community Infrastructure Program – Strategic Projects announced by the Prime Minister at the Australian Council of Local Government plenary meeting in Canberra on 25 June 2009;
- 11 NOTES that the following clubs will be direct beneficiaries to the revised integrated proposal:
 - (a) Seacrest Park Sorrento Duncraig Senior Cricket Club, Sorrento Duncraig Junior Cricket Club, Sorrento Duncraig Junior Football Club and Wanneroo Joondalup Tee-Ball Club;
 - MacDonald Reserve Whitford Amateur Football Club, Whitford Junior Football Club, Whitford Hockey Club and Whitford and Districts Senior Cricket Club;

(c) Forrest Reserve - Whitford Amateur Football Club, Whitford Junior Football Club and Northern Warriors Veteran Football Club;

12 RESOLVES that the revised integrated solution when finalised will be presented to a future Council meeting for approval prior to implementation.

AMENDMENT MOVED Mayor Pickard, SECONDED Cr Rosano that Point 6 of the Motion be amended by the deletion of the words ".... 2009/10 budgeted" and the insertion of the words "project budget".

The Amendment was Put and

In favour of the Amendment: Mayor Pickard, Crs Amphlett, Corr, Fishwick, Hart, Norman, Rosano and Young Against the Amendment: Cr Macdonald

Extension of Time to Speak

MOVED Cr Young, SECONDED Cr Rosano that Mayor Pickard be permitted an extension of time to speak.

The Motion was Put and

In favour of the Motion: Mayor Pickard, Crs Amphlett, Corr, Fishwick, Hart, Macdonald, Norman, Rosano and Young

MOTION OF DISSENT

MOVED Cr Hart, SECONDED Cr Corr that the meeting dissent with the Mayor's ruling that Cr Corr withdraw a statement he had made.

The Motion was Put and

In favour of the Motion: Crs Corr, Hart and Macdonald Against the Motion: Mayor Pickard, Crs Amphlett, Fishwick, Norman, Rosano and Young

Extension of Time to Speak

MOVED Cr Hart, SECONDED Cr Macdonald that Cr Corr be permitted an extension of time to speak.

The Motion was Put and

In favour of the Motion: Mayor Pickard, Crs Amphlett, Corr, Fishwick, Hart, Macdonald, Norman, Rosano and Young

RULING OF THE MAYOR

In accordance with Clause 38 of the City's Standing Orders Local Law 2005, Mayor Pickard ruled that Cr Corr no longer be heard on this matter.

CARRIED (9/0)

CARRIED (8/1)

CARRIED (9/0)

LOST (3/6)

Extension of Time to Speak

MOVED Cr Rosano, SECONDED Cr Amphlett that Cr Young be permitted an extension of time to speak.

The Motion was Put and

In favour of the Motion: Mayor Pickard, Crs Amphlett, Corr, Fishwick, Hart, Macdonald, Norman, Rosano and Young

The Original Motion as amended, being:

That Council:

- 1 NOTES the findings of the community consultation process undertaken for the proposed Seacrest Park Community Sporting Facility project;
- 2 NOTES the motions carried at the Special Meeting of Electors on 20 July 2009;
- 3 DOES NOT proceed with the original proposal for a Community Sporting Facility at Seacrest Park;
- 4 In consideration of the findings of the community consultation process and in addressing the needs of the affected sporting clubs in the locality, ADOPTS Option 3, being a revised and integrated solution comprising:
 - (a) The construction of a revised Seacrest Park Community Facility at Seacrest Park that provides a facility similar to Penistone Clubrooms located at Penistone Reserve, namely a single storey clubroom facility comprising change rooms, toilets, kitchen, storage, meeting room and function room. The revised Seacrest Park Community Facility is to be used by Sorrento Duncraig Senior Cricket Club, Sorrento Duncraig Junior Cricket Club, Sorrento Duncraig Junior Football Club and Wanneroo Joondalup Tee-Ball Club and is to be designed in keeping with its close proximity to the residential area and incorporate a Management Plan including, but not limited to, the prohibition of night time facility hire to casual users;
 - (b) Upgrade and extension to the Fleur Freame Pavilion at Macdonald Reserve including but not limited to an upgrade of existing facilities and an extension to the clubroom to cater for the Whitford Amateur Football Club, Whitford Junior Football Club and Whitford and Districts Senior Cricket Club and the construction of a new clubroom to the south west of the existing clubroom to cater for the Whitford Hockey Club;
 - (c) Upgrade an extension to the change room and toilet block facility at Forrest Reserve including but not limited to an upgrade of the existing change room and toilet facility and the construction of a new clubroom including storage, kitchen and function room to cater for the Whitford Amateur Football Club, Whitford Junior Football Club and the Northern Warriors Veteran Football Club;

CARRIED (9/0)

- 5 ESTABLISHES a Working Group to contribute to the design and development of the revised proposal for the Seacrest Park Community Facility comprising:
 - (a) Four representatives of the Save Seacrest Park Committee;
 - (b) One representative each from the Sorrento Duncraig Senior Cricket Club, Sorrento Duncraig Junior Cricket Club, Sorrento Duncraig Junior Football Club and Wanneroo Joondalup Tee-Ball Club;
 - (c) Mayor Troy Pickard, Councillor Michele Rosano and Councillor Mike Norman;
- 6 RESOLVES that the total expenditure for the integrated solution is not to exceed the total project expenditure previously allocated of \$5,223,200 including City of Joondalup project budget funds of \$2,214,000;
- 7 NOTES that the existing sporting club users at Macdonald Reserve and Forrest Reserve will be engaged during the development of the revised integrated solution to seek their contribution to the proposed upgrade and extensions at Macdonald Reserve and Forrest Reserve;
- 8 NOTES that the City will seek public comment on proposal 4 (b) and 4 (c) listed in Point 4 above for a 21 day period, to be advertised by way of:
 - (a) Signage on site;
 - (b) Advertisement in community newspaper;
 - (c) Letter to residents immediately adjoining the reserve;
 - (d) The City's website;

advising of the nature of the proposed development, where the plans can be viewed and how comment can be made to the City;

- 9 ADVISES the Minister for Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development and Local Government of Council's decision not to proceed with the original proposal for a Seacrest Park Community Sporting Facility project and requests a variation to the approved Regional and Local Community Infrastructure Program project to enable the revised integrated solution to be implemented;
- 10 RESOLVES that should the Minister for Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development and Local Government not agree to Council's request to vary the approved Regional and Local Community Infrastructure Program project, the City submit a new application incorporating the integrated solution to the Regional and Local Community Infrastructure Program – Strategic Projects announced by the Prime Minister at the Australian Council of Local Government plenary meeting in Canberra on 25 June 2009;
- 11 NOTES that the following clubs will be direct beneficiaries to the revised integrated proposal:
 - (a) Seacrest Park Sorrento Duncraig Senior Cricket Club, Sorrento Duncraig Junior Cricket Club, Sorrento Duncraig Junior Football Club and Wanneroo Joondalup Tee-Ball Club;
 - MacDonald Reserve Whitford Amateur Football Club, Whitford Junior Football Club, Whitford Hockey Club and Whitford and Districts Senior Cricket Club;

(c) Forrest Reserve - Whitford Amateur Football Club, Whitford Junior Football Club and Northern Warriors Veteran Football Club;

12 RESOLVES that the revised integrated solution when finalised will be presented to a future Council meeting for approval prior to implementation.

was Put and

CARRIED (8/1)

In favour of the Motion: Mayor Pickard, Crs Amphlett, Corr, Fishwick, Hart, Norman, Rosano and Young Against the Motion: Cr Macdonald

Appendix 1 refers

To access this attachment on electronic document, click here: Attach1aqn090901.pdf

CLOSURE

There being no further business, the Mayor declared the Meeting closed at 1944 hrs; the following Elected Members being present at that time:

MAYOR T PICKARD Cr T YOUNG Cr M MACDONALD Cr G AMPHLETT Cr S HART Cr B CORR Cr M ROSANO Cr M NORMAN Cr R FISHWICK